St. Vladimir's Orthodox Theological Seminary <u>GIFT ACCEPTANCE POLICY</u>

Table of Contents

- I. INTRODUCTION
- II. PURPOSES OF POLICIES AND GUIDELINES
- III. GUIDING PRINCIPLES
- IV. SEMINARY RESPONSIBILITIES
 - A. Gift Acceptance Committee
 - B. Legal Counsel
- V. RELATIONS WITH CONSTITUENTS
 - A. Confidentiality
 - B. Pledges
 - C. Donor Recognition
 - D. Anonymity

VI. GIFTS

- A. Restricted and Unrestricted Gifts
- B. Types of Gifts
- C. Acceptance Criteria
- D. Acknowledgements and Receipts
- E. Gift Dates
- F. Matching Gifts
- G. Third-Party Donations and Soft Credits
- H. Third-Party Payments and Gifts to Individual Students
- VII. CHANGES AND EXCEPTIONS

I. Introduction

- St. Vladimir's Seminary serves Jesus Christ, His Church, and the world through Orthodox theological education. The Seminary prepares students for ordained ministry and lay service so that they may build up Orthodox communities; foster Church growth through mission and evangelism; teach the Christian faith; and care for those in need.
- St. Vladimir's Seminary encourages the solicitation and acceptance of gifts to the Seminary for purposes that will help the Seminary to further and fulfill its mission. The following policies and guidelines govern acceptance of gifts made to the Seminary for the benefit of any of its programs.

II. PURPOSES OF POLICIES AND GUIDELINES

The Board of Trustees, faculty, staff, alumni, and volunteers of St. Vladimir's Seminary solicit current and deferred gifts from individuals, corporations, and foundations to preserve the mission, continue growth, and secure the future of St. Vladimir's Seminary. These policies and guidelines govern the acceptance of gifts by the Seminary, and provide guidance to prospective donors and their advisors when making gifts to the Seminary. The provisions of these policies shall apply to all gifts received by St. Vladimir's for any of its programs or services. These policies supersede all previous policies and practices.

III. GUIDING PRINCIPLES

Because of our responsibilities as a recipient of philanthropy, and as a guide and teacher of moral and ethical leaders, St. Vladimir's Seminary is guided in our fundraising ministry by the following principles:

- A. Our primary concern is that our constituents that is, everyone who comes into contact with the Seminary, its alumni, or its representatives should grow in life, faith, and spiritual understanding.
- B. The development of healthy relationships between the Seminary and its constituents is a worthy goal in itself, whether or not it leads to financial support.
- C. We encourage anyone who believes in our mission, vision, and values to support St. Vladimir's Seminary in whatever way they determine to be most appropriate for their circumstances.
- D. Through the conscious use of Best Practices, we are open, transparent, and responsible stewards of the resources entrusted to us and of the gifts made to support our mission.
- E. We expect all members of our community to hold to the highest standards of professional ethics and personal integrity, and we encourage our constituents to do the same.
- F. We reject any fundraising practices that are coercive, manipulative, dishonest, unethical, or illegal, remembering always that we are accountable to our constituents and to God.

IV. SEMINARY RESPONSIBILITIES

A. GIFT ACCEPTANCE COMMITTEE

- 1. The Gift Acceptance Committee is charged with the responsibility of reviewing all gifts made to St. Vladimir's Seminary, properly screening and accepting those gifts, and making recommendations to the Board of Trustees on gift acceptance issues when appropriate.
- 2. The Gift Acceptance Committee shall consist of:
 - a) The Dean, Chancellor, and Executive Chair,
 - b) The chair of the finance committee of the Board of Trustees,
 - c) The chair of the advancement committee of the Board of Trustees.
 - d) The associate chancellor for advancement.
- 3. The Gift Acceptance Committee may seek the advice of other members of the seminary community at its discretion.

B. LEGAL COUNSEL

- St. Vladimir's Seminary shall seek the advice of legal counsel in matters relating to the acceptance of gifts when appropriate. Review by counsel is recommended for:
- Closely held stock transfers that are subject to restrictions or buy-sell agreements,
- Documents naming the Seminary as Trustee, or in any other fiduciary capacity,
- Gifts involving contracts, such as bargain sales or other documents requiring the Seminary to assume an obligation,
- Gifts of real property, tangible property or other chattels, or other non-liquid assets,

- Transactions with potential conflict of interest that may invoke IRS sanctions, and
- Other instances in which use of counsel is deemed appropriate by the Gift Acceptance Committee.

V. RELATIONS WITH CONSTITUENTS

A. CONFIDENTIALITY

It is assumed that in the course of preparing for and conducting fundraising efforts for St. Vladimir's Seminary, members of the Board of Trustees, faculty, and administration (especially the Office of Institutional Advancement); students; and volunteers will have the opportunity and occasion to discuss information of a personal, financial, and confidential nature. The following policies are established to affirm the Seminary's commitment to protect the dignity and trust of our benefactors, friends, and prospective donors.

- 1. All fundraising-related discussions concerning major gift prospects whether individuals, foundations, or corporations are to be held in confidence.
- 2. All information concerning financial capability, past giving patterns, specific gifts, and/or personal disclosures about giving interests are to be treated confidentially.
- 3. All discussions and/or reports of gifts and endowment campaign commitments made during campaign committee meetings are to be held in confidence until the donor's desires concerning publicity or anonymity are expressed in the written confirmation of the pledge or gift.
- 4. Policies regarding anonymity and the reporting of gifts are covered in Policies Concerning Donor Recognition below.

B. PLEDGES

- 1. Supporters are encouraged but not required to make pledges to support particular campaigns, operations, or projects. One exception is named gift opportunities, as detailed in Restricted Gifts below.
- 2. Either a signed pledge or letter of intent must be in the possession of St. Vladimir's Seminary before a pledge is recorded. Verbal pledges must be confirmed in writing possible unless such written confirmation is impractical or impossible.
- 3. The normal pledge payment period for gifts will be from one to five years.
- 4. Donors are encouraged but not required to predetermine a schedule for donations over the lifetime of their pledge(s).
- 5. Permanent donor recognition will be based upon the full payment of pledge commitments within the allotted pledge period.
- 6. Pledges from constituents whose employers match gifts will clearly show both the constituent's and the employer's expected contributions.
- 7. In cases where received monies cannot be used to fulfill personal pledges (e.g., grants from donor-advised funds, certain matching gifts), the donor will receive soft credit (see below) for these gifts, and their personal pledge will be reduced by a corresponding amount.

C. Donor Recognition

- 1. Provisions will be made to recognize donors to St. Vladimir's Seminary while recognizing the wishes of those who choose to remain anonymous.
- 2. Types of Recognition
 - a) **Named Gift Opportunities** are the designation of buildings, rooms, scholarships and awards, endowed professorships, and programs in recognition of a specified and agreed-upon level of financial support.
 - b) **Donor Recognition Levels** are groupings of donors according to levels of giving in the categories as outlined below:
 - (1) Annual Donors Based on ALL giving within a particular calendar year.
 - (a) Cornerstones \$100,000+
 - (b) Pillars \$50,000 \$99,999
 - (c) Witnesses -\$25,000 \$49,999
 - (d) Advocates \$10,000 \$24,999
 - (e) Patrons -\$5,000 \$9,999
 - (f) Sustainers \$2,000 \$4,999
 - (g) Stewards \$1,000 \$1,999
 - (h) Benefactors \$500 \$999
 - (i) Donors Less than \$500
 - (2) St.. Vladimir's Seminary Faithful Stewards Donor Society—In grateful recognition of 20 or more years of consistent financial and loyal support to the work and mission of St.. Vladimir's Seminary.
 - (3) Father Alexander Schmemann Legacy Society Members
 - (a) Departed: In grateful memory of our departed brothers and sisters in our Lord Jesus Christ who remembered St. Vladimir's Seminary with a charitable bequest.
 - (b) Living: With gratitude for our living brothers and sisters who have remembered St. Vladimir's Seminary with a planned gift.
- 3. Forms of Recognition
 - a) The Seminary will publish names of donors. Such publications may include:
 - (1) Seminary Annual Reports, with full listings of Annual Donors, notices that individual donors have reached particular lifetime giving levels, and announcement of new named gifts.
 - (2) SVS News magazine and other newsletters and publications may feature profiles of significant donors or announcements of significant gifts.
 - (3) Recipients of named scholarships and merit-based awards may be listed in academic announcements (e.g., Commencement programs).
- D. ANONYMITY

- 1. Benefactors will be given the opportunity to choose anonymity, and this anonymity will be reflected in all published lists and other forms of donor recognition.
- 2. For reasons of stewardship and security, members of the Gift Acceptance Committee and of the Office of Institutional Advancement staff will be informed of the amount of all gifts and pledges including those from donors who request anonymity.
- 3. Donors who elect anonymity shall be made aware by the Gift Acceptance Committee of the select individuals who will be informed of their pledges and gifts, before news of the gift is communicated. Donors shall then have the opportunity to further limit this list but should be made to understand that it shall be necessary for at least administrators at the Seminary to have knowledge of their identity.

VI. GIFTS

A. RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED GIFTS

1. Unless otherwise notified, St. Vladimir's Seminary will assume that all gifts are unrestricted and may be used to fund any aspect of seminary operations.

2. Restricted Gifts

- a) St. Vladimir's Seminary will accept gifts for specific programs, departments, and purposes, provided that such gifts are not inconsistent with the Seminary's stated mission, purposes, and priorities.
- b) The Seminary will not accept gifts that in the opinion of the Gift Acceptance Committee, are too restrictive in purpose that is, that violate the terms of the corporate charter, that are too difficult to administer, that are insufficient in value to cover the restricted purpose of the proposed gift, or that are for purposes outside the mission of the Seminary.
- c) Restricted gifts for named gift opportunities require written gift agreements detailing all aspects of pledge amounts, gift schedules, forms of recognition, matching gifts, non-payment contingencies, etc.
- d) The Seminary will accept gifts restricted to general financial aid, both current and endowed. Financial aid gifts with further restrictions must be approved by the Gift Acceptance Committee in consultation with the Financial Aid Committee.
- e) The Gift Acceptance Committee of St. Vladimir's Seminary shall make all final decisions on the restrictive nature of a gift, and its acceptance or refusal.

B. Types of Gifts

- 1. Cash
- 2. Gifts in Kind
- 3. Gifts of Materials for the Seminary Library
- 4. Publicly Traded Securities
- 5. Privately/Closely Held Securities
- 6. Real Estate
- 7. Remainder Interests or Term Interests in Property
- 8. Oil, Gas, or Mineral Interests
- 9. Bargain Sales

- 10. Life Insurance
- 11. Charitable Annuities
- 12. Charitable Remainder Trusts
- 13. Charitable Lead Trusts
- 14. Bequests
- 15. Life Insurance Beneficiary Designations
- 16. Gifts of Services

C. ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA

- 1. **Cash.** Gifts of cash are acceptable in any form. Checks may be made payable to St. Vladimir's Orthodox Theological Seminary. Credit card donations may be made in person, by mail, or online at www.svots.edu/support. All cash gifts must be in US dollars. Checks and money orders must bear a pre-printed bank address within the United States and if originating from outside the United States the designation "US dollars" or the equivalent.
- 2. **Gifts-in-kind.** Gifts-in-kind (also known as Tangible Personal Property) are material gifts other than cash, marketable or privately held securities, or real property. Providing documentation of gift valuation including qualified independent appraisals for gifts valued at \$1,000 or more is the responsibility of the donor. Gifts-in-kind of an undetermined value will be recorded at zero dollars (\$0.00) and acknowledged as received with no value stated. The Seminary shall have no obligation to inquire about and shall incur no liability for the sufficiency or insufficiency of any appraisal provided by a donor, however the Gift Acceptance Committee reserves the right to reject an appraisal (and record the value of a gift at zero dollars) which, in its discretion, appears to be invalid or insufficient in any way.

The Gift Acceptance Committee shall make the final determination on the acceptance of other tangible property gifts, which shall be examined in light of the following criteria:

- a) Does the property fulfill the mission of the Seminary?
- b) Is the property marketable?
- c) Are there any undue restrictions on the use, display, or sale of the property?
- d) Are there any carrying costs for the property?

Unless a written agreement stating otherwise exists prior to the gift date, any gift-in-kind may be sold, donated, or otherwise disposed of at the Seminary's discretion.

- 3. **Gifts of Materials for the Seminary Library.** The library of St. Vladimir's Seminary will accept donations of books, serial publications, and other media that meet the physical and intellectual acquisitions criteria detailed in the Seminary's Library Collection Development Policy.
 - a) The library has the right to determine suitability for inclusion in the collection and to discard any gifts in poor physical condition
 - b) The Seminary does not appraise donated materials for income tax or gift valuation purposes. Donations to the seminary library will be recorded at zero dollars (\$0.00) and acknowledged as received with no value stated, unless accompanied by a qualified independent appraisal.

- c) Bargain sales of materials for the seminary library are subject to the standard Bargain Sale policies detailed below.
- d) In addition to the usual forms of donor recognition, books received into the collection may be labeled with bookplates identifying the donor.
- e) Duplicates or items not suitable for the collection may be donated to other institutions. Preference will be given to Orthodox Christian institutions. If no Orthodox institution accepts such materials, they may be offered to the USBE (Universal Serials and Book Exchange) or the American Library Association's Duplicate Exchange Union. Such materials that are not accepted as donations by another institution may be sold or otherwise disposed of at the Seminary's discretion. Any proceeds of sale shall be maintained by the Seminary for its general purposes.
- 4. **Securities.** The Seminary may accept both publicly traded securities and closely held securities. It is understood that the donor, in transferring ownership of the stock, is making a charitable contribution and, as such, has no rights concerning the disposition, sale, or retention of any stocks given to the Seminary. Any loss or gain in the value of the stock, resulting from the timing of the sale, will not be added or subtracted from the gift evaluation.
 - a) Publicly Traded Securities. Marketable securities may be transferred to an account maintained at the Seminary's broker, or delivered physically with the transferor's signature or stock power sent separately.
 - (1) As a general rule, all marketable securities shall be sold immediately upon transfer of ownership and no less than 24 hours from the date and time of transfer.
 - (2) Gifts of marketable securities will be evaluated on the basis of the average market value of the stocks on the date of transfer.
 - (3) In some cases, marketable securities may be restricted by applicable securities laws. In such instances the final determination of the acceptance of the restricted securities shall be made by the Gift Acceptance Committee.
 - b) Closely Held Securities. Closely held securities, which include not only debt and equity positions in non-publicly traded companies but also interest in limited partnerships and limited liability companies, or other ownership forms, can be accepted subject to the approval of the Gift Acceptance Committee. However, gifts must be reviewed prior to acceptance to determine:
 - (1) There are no restrictions on the security that would prevent the Seminary from ultimately converting those assets to cash or which would prevent the Seminary from owning such asset.
 - (2) The security is marketable.
 - (3) The security will not generate an undesirable tax consequence for the Seminary.
 - (4) Ownership of the security shall not create financial obligations for the Seminary.

If potential problems arise on initial review of the security, further review and recommendation by an outside professional may be sought before making a final decision on acceptance of the gift. The Gift Acceptance Committee and legal counsel shall make the final determination on the acceptance of closely held securities when necessary. Every effort will be made to sell non-marketable securities as quickly as possible.

5. **Real Estate.** Gifts of real estate may include developed property, undeveloped property, or gifts subject to a prior life interest. Prior to acceptance of real estate, the Seminary shall require an initial environmental review of the property to ensure that the property has no environmental damage. In the event that the initial inspection reveals a potential problem, the Seminary shall retain a qualified inspection firm to the conduct an environmental audit. The cost of the environmental audit shall generally be an expense of the donor. The donor must also provide an independent appraisal substantiating the value of the property.

When appropriate, a title binder shall be obtained by the Seminary prior to the acceptance of the real property gift. The cost of this title binder shall generally be an expense of the donor.

Prior to acceptance of the real property, the gift shall be approved by the Gift Acceptance Committee and by the Seminary's legal counsel. Criteria for acceptance of the property shall include:

- a) Is the property useful for the purposes of the Seminary?
- b) Is the property marketable?
- c) Are there any restrictions, reservations, easements, or other limitations associated with the property?
- d) Are there carrying costs, or encumbrances which may include insurance, property taxes, mortgages, liens or notes, etc., associated with the property?
- e) Does the environmental audit reflect that the property is not damaged?
- 6. **Remainder Interests in Property.** The Seminary may accept a remainder interest in a personal residence, commercial property, farm, or vacation property subject to the provisions of section 5 above. The donor or other occupants may continue to occupy the real property for the duration of the stated life. At the death of the donor, the Seminary may use the property or reduce it to cash. When the Seminary receives a gift of a remainder interest, expenses for maintenance, real estate taxes, and any property indebtedness are to be paid by the donor, the life tenant or primary beneficiary.
- 7. **Oil, Gas, and Mineral Interests.** The Seminary may accept oil, gas, or mineral property interests, when appropriate. Prior to acceptance of such an interest, the gift shall be approved by the Gift Acceptance Committee, and if necessary, by the Seminary's legal counsel. Criteria for acceptance of this property should include:
 - a) Gifts of surface rights should have a value of \$20,000 or greater.
 - b) Gifts of oil, gas, and mineral interests should generate at least \$3,000 per year in royalties or other income (as determined by the average of the three years prior to the gift).

- c) The property should not have extended liabilities or other considerations that make receipt of the gift inappropriate.
- d) A working interest is rarely accepted. A working interest may only be accepted when there is a plan to minimize potential liability and tax consequences.
- e) The property should undergo an environmental review to ensure that the Seminary has no current or potential exposure to environmental liability.
- 8. **Bargain Sales.** The Seminary may enter in to a bargain sale arrangement (that is, a donor selling property to the Seminary at below-market value) in instances in which the bargain sale furthers the mission and purposes of the Seminary.
 - a) The Gift Acceptance Committee must review all bargain sales. Bargain sales with a claimed fair market value of \$1,000 or more must be recommended by the Gift Acceptance Committee and approved by the Board of Trustees.
 - b) The donor must provide documentation substantiating the value of the property. A qualified independent appraisal is required for any gift with a claimed fair market value of \$1,000 or more.
 - c) If the Seminary assumes debt with the property, the debt ratio must be less than fifty percent of the appraised market value.
 - d) The Seminary must determine that it will use the property, or that there is a market for sale of the property, allowing sale within 12 months of receipt.
 - e) The Seminary must calculate the costs to safeguard, insure, and expense the property (including property tax, if applicable) during the holding period.
 - f) For receipting, recognition, and pledge fulfillment purposes, the value of the gift will be the difference between the sale price and the fair market value at the time of sale to the Seminary.
 - g) Any loss or gain in the value of the property, resulting from the timing of subsequent sale, will not be added or subtracted from the gift evaluation.
- 9. **Life Insurance.** The Seminary must be named as both beneficiary and irrevocable owner of an insurance policy before a life insurance policy can be recorded as a gift. The gift is valued at its interpolated terminal reserve value, or cash surrender value, upon receipt. If the donor contributes future premium payments, the Seminary will record the entire amount of the additional premium payment as a gift in the year it is made.

If the donor does not elect to continue to make gifts to cover premium payments on the life insurance policy, the Seminary may at its discretion:

- a) continue to pay the premiums;
- b) convert the policy to paid up insurance; or
- c) surrender the policy for its current cash value.
- 10. **Charitable Gift Annuities.** Subject to all relevant governmental regulations, the Seminary may offer charitable gift annuities. The minimum gift for funding is \$10,000. The Seminary's Gift Acceptance Committee may make exceptions to this minimum. The minimum age for life income beneficiaries of a gift annuity shall be 55.

- a) Where a deferred gift annuity is offered, the minimum age for the life income beneficiaries shall be 45. No more than two life income beneficiaries will be permitted for any gift annuity.
- b) Annuity payments may be made on a quarterly, semi-annual, or annual schedule. The Chancellor of the Seminary may approve exceptions to this payment schedule.
- c) Except as set forth below, Tthe Seminary will not accept real estate, tangible personal property, or any other illiquid asset in exchange for current charitable gift annuities. The Seminary may accept real estate, tangible personal property, or other illiquid assets in exchange for deferred gift annuities so long as there is at least a 5-year period before the commencement of the annuity payment date, the value of the property is reasonably certain, and the Chancellor of the Seminary approves the arrangement subject to approval from the Gift Acceptance Committee.
- d) Funds contributed in exchange for a gift annuity shall be set aside and invested during the term of the annuity payments. Once those payments have terminated, the funds representing the remaining principal contributed in exchange for the gift annuity shall be transferred to the Seminary's general endowment funds or to such specific fund as designated by the donor.
- 11. **Charitable Remainder Trusts.** The Seminary may accept designation as remainder beneficiary of a charitable remainder trust with the approval of the Gift Acceptance Committee. The Seminary may accept appointment as trustee of a charitable remainder trust.
- 12. **Charitable Lead Trust.** The Seminary may accept a designation as income beneficiary of a charitable lead trust. The Seminary may accept appointment as trustee of a charitable lead trust.
- 13. **Retirement Plan Beneficiary Designations.** Donors and supporters of the Seminary are encouraged to name St. Vladimir's Seminary as beneficiary of their retirement plans. Such designations will not be recorded as gifts to the Seminary until such time as the gift is received, at which time the value of the gift will also be determined.
- 14. **Bequests.** Donors and supporters of the Seminary are encouraged to make bequests to St. Vladimir's Seminary under their wills and trusts. Such bequests will not be recorded as gifts to the Seminary until such time as the gift is received, at which time the value of the gift will also be determined.
- 15. **Life Insurance Beneficiary Designations.** Donors and supporters of the Seminary are encouraged to name St. Vladimir's Seminary as beneficiary or contingent beneficiary of their life insurance policies. Such designations shall not be recorded as gifts to the Seminary until such time as the gift is received, at which time the value of the gift will also be determined.

D. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND RECEIPTS

- 1. A formal tax receipt for cash donations shall be sent to each donor upon acceptance of the gift.
- 2. Receipts are not issued for non-cash contributions, such as gifts of stock, bonds, or gifts-in-kind. The Seminary will formally acknowledge non-cash gifts in a letter

containing a description of the donated item, although the actual fair market value will not be stated.

3. Memorial gifts and gifts in honor of others are acknowledged to the donor, and a list of donors (but not gift amounts) is provided to interested parties by the Office of Institutional Advancement when requested.

E. GIFT DATES

- 1. All donations will be entered as a gift by the Office of Institutional Advancement based on the value of the gift on the date it is relinquished to the Seminary.
- 2. Gifts by check shall be recorded as given as per the date on the check.
- 3. Gifts by credit card are recorded in the same manner as cash or check and should be recorded only after the Seminary has received authorization for the charge from the credit card agency, the date of such authorization being the date of the gift; the face value of the donation will be recorded for the donor, and any fees imposed by card issuing companies will be borne by the Seminary as administrative expenses.
- 4. Regardless of the actual gift date, donors may designate gifts for a particular campaign year; for example, a gift to the 2007 Annual Operating Campaign might be made in either December 2007 or January 2008.

F. MATCHING GIFTS

- 1. Whenever and wherever possible, donors are encouraged to seek out and take advantage of corporate or foundation matching gift programs.
- 2. All matching gift requests are to comply with the policies of the matching gift company. St. Vladimir's Seminary will neither solicit nor accept matching funds for gifts made on behalf of non-eligible donors.
- 3. Unless otherwise directed by the donor's corporation or foundation, income from matching gifts will be designated for the same restricted purpose (if any) as the original gift of the individual donor.
- 4. Pledges from constituents whose employers match gifts will clearly show both the constituent's and the employer's expected contributions.
 - a) When the total gift is to fund a specific recognition opportunity (especially a named gift opportunity), donors agree to make up any shortfall caused by a matching gift company's determination either of the ineligibility of a matching gift request or of an unacceptable designation of restricted purpose. Donors are therefore strongly encouraged to examine their companies' gift matching policies closely to avoid such a situation.
 - b) The Seminary and the donor will determine in advance an acceptable alternative gift designation and/or recognition opportunity should the donor be unable to make up such a shortfall. A written copy of this determination shall be included with the donor's pledge.
- 5. The corporate or foundation matching gift donor will receive credit and appropriate named gift recognition and/or will be categorized in the appropriate donor recognition level. For recognition purposes, the amount of the matching gift will be added as a soft credit to the record of the donor who initiated the gift.

6. In cases where matching gifts specifically cannot be used to fulfill personal pledges, the donor will receive soft credit for these funds, and their personal pledge will be reduced by a corresponding amount

G. THIRD-PARTY DONATIONS AND SOFT CREDITS

- 1. St. Vladimir's Seminary may accept donations made by third parties on behalf of constituents. In general, the legal donor will receive credit and appropriate named gift recognition and/or will be categorized in the appropriate donor recognition level. For recognition purposes, the amount of the gift will be added as a soft credit to the record of the donor who initiated the gift. For example:
 - a) The principal or owner of a business, in which an individual plays an instrumental role in helping the Seminary receive the gift from that corporation, will receive a soft credit for the donation; the business still receives the primary credit as the legal donor.
 - b) Gifts from family and personal foundations are counted as foundation (not individual) gifts; any and all related family members, to the extent these are known, may receive soft credit for gifts made by the foundation.

In such cases, soft credits will count as payments towards existing pledges.

2. Paying down personal pledges by a donor-advised fund (DAF) is expressly forbidden by these funds, since donors to such a fund have relinquished control of their securities and can only recommend – and not bind – the fund to direct their grants to a specific charity. Therefore, when the Seminary receives a grant from a DAF or similar organization (such as a Community Foundation), the fund will receive credit and appropriate named gift recognition and/or will be categorized in the appropriate donor recognition level, the amount of the gift will be added as a soft credit to the record of the donor who initiated the gift, the donor will receive the appropriate level of recognition, and the donor's pledge will be reduced by the amount of the fund's gift.

H. THIRD-PARTY PAYMENTS AND GIFTS TO INDIVIDUAL STUDENTS

- 1. At its discretion, St. Vladimir's Seminary may accept third party payments to individual student accounts and will accept monies to be disbursed directly to individual students.
- 2. Such payments and monies are not considered gifts to St. Vladimir's Seminary, will not be receipted as such, and will not count towards donor recognition levels or pledges.
- 3. Such payments and monies may be considered taxable income by governmental authorities and may create tax liability for students or affect their financial aid awards.
- 4. St. Vladimir's Seminary may keep notes of such third-party transactions as records of the constituents' relationship with the Seminary.

VII. CHANGES AND EXCEPTIONS

These policies and guidelines have been reviewed and accepted by the Gift Acceptance Committee of St. Vladimir's Seminary. The Gift Acceptance Policy Committee is empowered to make changes and grant exceptions to these general policies to improve advancement operations, to encourage significant gifts, or to improve benefactor relationships, unless such changes or exceptions would violate the confidentiality and trust of our constituents or would be illegal,

unethical, or otherwise counter to the mission, vision, and values of St. Vladimir's Seminary. All final changes to the Gift Acceptance Policy are subject to Board approval.

May 21, 2010